



USER GUIDE: PI & ASSOCIATES

Updated: 10/04/2017

CONTENTS

LAB/CLASSROOM USE PROTOCOLS	2
New	
Navigating the Form	4
Completing the Protocol	4
Annual/Interim Review	8
Amendment	
SUBMIT A RENEWAL (EVERY 3 YEARS)	13
ELICIT PRE-REVIEW FEEDBACK VIA PDF (DO NOT USE "PRESUBMIT")	15
CREATE PROTOCOL DETAIL REPORT (PDF)	15
REMOVE PRE-SUBMISSION REVIEWER (IF ADDED PREVIOUSLY)	15
ANIMAL ORDERS	16
How to Order Animals	
Recurring Orders	20
Animal Order Outline Filters	23
ORDER NEW CAGE CARDS FOR WEANINGS	24
COMPLETE SECTION 1: "WEAN PROTOCOL INFORMATION"	
COMPLETE SECTION 2: "WEAN INFORMATION"	25
Schedule Multiple Deliveries	

LAB/CLASSROOM USE PROTOCOLS

The following sections explain how to manage a research protocol in Topaz. The tutorials cover all of the submissions you will be required to submit throughout the lifetime of the study to include: an original protocol, interim review(s), amendment(s), and renewal(s).

1. **New Protocol** - A **new** protocol is the first submission of your study. In an original protocol you are submitting new research for its first approval period. You will only have one original protocol throughout the lifetime of a study.

Submission Interval: Once – upon initial research proposal or upon the expiration of "Transition" protocol.

2. Interim Review - An interim review protocol is used to provide an annual progress report when the study is not due for its three-year renewal. At interim review it is possible to submit any amending changes to the original protocol.

Submission Interval: Annually for the two years following initial approval or renewal.

3. **Renewal** - A **renewal** protocol is submitted every three years following initial approval (i.e. year three of approval, year six of approval, year nine of approval, etc.). During renewal you can make amending changes to the original protocol, if desired.

Submission Interval: Every three years following initial approval.

4. Amendment – An amendment protocol should be submitted if you need to make changes to an approved study. You can submit an amendment at any time during the lifetime of the study. If your study is nearing interim review, you can simultaneously submit any amending changes in that submission.



Submission Interval: No time constraints; submit as needed.

¹ THE SUBMISSION LIFECYCLE OF A STUDY.

An **new** protocol is the first submission for your study. In an original protocol you are submitting new research for its first approval period.

- 1. Go to the Topaz login page at https://animalprogram.colorado.edu
 - Bookmark this page for easy access later.
 - Login with your CU IdentiKey and password.
- 2. Open Animal Protocols.
- 3. Hover (with your cursor) over **Protocols** and a menu will appear. Select **Create Original Protocol**.
- 4. The screen will refresh. In the Select Form window, select Lab/Classroom Use Protocol NEW.



2 AN EXAMPLE OF THE SELECT FORM WINDOW.

Navigating the Form

1. Once you have selected the form, the screen will display the protocol screen with an Outline of the sections and corresponding questions.

🗰 Animal Protocols 🏾 🏠 Main P	Animal Protocols 🏠 Main Protocols	
Open Unsubm Save button	11 N 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	
Outline Form Sections	1 2160	Form Questions
Q Quick Finder	Verdana - 12 * B I U ≜ + ± ± = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =	
1 Protocol Details	1 Protocol Details	1.
± 3 Source of Animals	Reference Number	
E 4 Location or Live Animais	Reference Number: System Generated Unique ID	
1 5 Study Objectives	2160	
1 6 Procedures		
17 Experimental Groups	Protocol Number Protocol Number	0
8 Test articles and drugs	Protocol Number	
19 Surgery		
10 Animal Health and Care	Principal Investigator	
🕀 11 Euthanasia	Principal Investigator	•
12 Alternatives to Animal Models	Siordano, Tracy tracy.giordano@colorado.edu	
13 Restraint of Animals	and distributive they growing contains and	
14 Special Concern or requirements of the study	Title	
15 Animal and Personnel Safety	Enter your protocol title	
16 Safety Review	🕜 Show Segments 🛛 🙀 🔜 BACK 📄 Section 1 of 17 🛛 NEXT 🕨 M	1:

3 AN EXAMPLE PROTOCOL SCREEN.

2. Complete the questions in each section. Some sections will include segments that must be completed. When finished, click on the **Next** button to advance to the next section.

Icons You Will See

- The Required icon indicates that the question you are on must be completed in order to submit the form.
- Ite Attachment icon indicates a question that you can upload an attachment.
- The Add icon indicates an element that you can add additional information.
- The Add Image icon indicates that you can attach an image to the corresponding section.

Completing the Protocol

 Section 1 and 2: Protocol Details and Personnel - In these sections you will enter information about study personnel and funding. Adding personnel under Protocol Associates (section 2) allows you to specify staff members who will be working on the protocol. You will use the Staff Select grid to designate whether a staff member is co-investigator, key associate, or authorized to order animals. The people entered here will be available for selection later in the form.

Protocol Associates	
Tester, IACUC Image: Construction of the second	

4 EXAMPLE OF PROTOCOL ASSOCIATES SUBSECTION.

Co-investigators have the same access privileges as the PI. If none of the boxes are checked then the staff member is considered an "other associate"; other associates are able to view the approved protocol only.

2. Section 3: Species - Complete this section to report the species that will be used in the study. The numbers in this section must match what you will enter per pain category or the highest level pain category an animal will experience.

Example: If you order 300 animals at Category C but 100 of them will start at B then eventually end in D. You literally cannot pick experimental Pain Category B for those 100.

Scenario 1: Only experience category B Scenario 2: Only experience category C Scenario 3: Will Experience B then C

In Topaz:

- Choose the highest category
- Explain transition in Sequence and Timing in Experimental Group

Select animals at highest pain category they will experience throughout the experiment.

Under the **Species Selection** click the \bigcirc icon. A Species selection window will appear. Locate the desired species in the list and click the \bigcirc icon to add it to the keep list. When your list is complete, click the **Ok** button. The Species selection window will close.

C	Add ALL >>		0	<< Remove ALL
	Name		Name	
0	Amphibians	^		
0	Birds			
0	Cat	11		
0	Fish			
0	Guinea Pig			
0	Hamster			
Desc	ription			

5 EXAMPLE OF SPECIES SELECTION WINDOW.

On the protocol screen, you will see a list of species you selected. Click the **Show Segments** button. The first segment (i.e. the first species listed) will load. Complete all fields, as appropriate.

a. Strain/Stock Breed

i. For each species you must select a Strain/Stock/Breed. The Strain/Stock/Breed subsection is the first question of the segment.

1	2.1.2 Rat (rattus norvegicus) #1	• •
	Strain/Stock/Breed Strain/Stock/Breed	Click this icon to add a Strain/Stock/Breed.
ľ	Age/Weight/Size	E

6 Example of how to add strain/stock/breed for rat.

ii. Click the ^O icon. The Strain/Stock/Breed selection window will appear. Locate the desired strain/stock/breed in the list and click the ^O icon to add it to the keep list. When your list is complete, click the **Ok** button. The Strain/Stock/Breed selection window will close.

0	Add ALL >>		<< Remove ALL	• H 🤧 🕂	
Name Brown Ni Cark Ago CD Fischer 3 Fischer 3 Fischer 2 Long Eva Wistar	uti F1 (F344BN) 44 DF	Name) Je Dawley	 Save Filter Create New F Add Condition Apply Filter t Delete Filter 	ns to Filter
Description	Page 1 of	L.			O Cancel

7 EXAMPLE OF THE STRAIN/STOCK/BREED SELECTION WINDOW.

- b. Click the **Save** icon. Click the **Show Sections** button. Complete any remaining segments (i.e. additional species segments). Click the **Next** button.
- 2. Section 4: Animal Use Enter the Abstract, any agents, breading and more. Click the Save button. Click the Next button.
- 3. Section 5: Animal: Number Justification, Sources & Location Enter the facility where animals will be housed and answer the remaining questions. Click the Save button. Click the Next button.
- 4. Section 6: Justification of Animal Use Complete all fields to explain the rationale for animal use in this study. Click the **Save** button. Click the **Next** button.
- 5. Section 7: Pain and Distress Complete all fields to explain the and pain and distress during this study. Click the Save button. Click the Next button.
- Section 8: Animal Care Enter the personnel responsible for the daily care of the animals, if it will be the OAR staff please state that. In the Special Care section select and of the check boxes that will be required for this protocol.
- Click the Save button. Click the Next button.
 - Section 9: Animal and Personnel Safety Disclose any concerns or procedures that may affect animal or personnel safety as well as the status of you and your research team's conflict of Interest disclosures. In the "Additional Safety and Regulatory Reviews" select all that apply.

Click the Save button. Click the Next button.

8. Section 10: Principal Investigator Certification – Read and complete the certification. Click the Save button.

9. You have completed the original protocol application. Click the Submit button. The form will be checked for errors. If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the subtract button in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

8 Example of the Outline with three outstanding required questions that need to be addressed before submitting.

10. all errors are resolved an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

Annual/Interim Review

An **interim review** protocol is used to provide an annual progress report when the study is not due for its three-year renewal. At interim review, it is possible to submit any amending changes to the original protocol.

- 1. Go to the Topaz login page at https://animalprogram.colorado.edu
 - Bookmark this page for easy access later.
 - Login with your CU IdentiKey and password.
- 2. Open Animal Protocols.
- Hover your cursor over Protocols and a menu will appear. Select Create Interim Review Protocol.
 - The screen will refresh and display the Select Protocol For Interim Review window with a list of your protocols that are eligible for an annual review.
 - Troubleshooting tip: If your protocol does not display, it is likely that a review or amendment has already been started. To check, click **Open Unsubmitted Protocols** from the Protocols menu.
- 4. Select the desired protocol and click the **Ok** button.
 - > The window will close and a *Select Form for Interim Review* window will appear.
- 5. Select Lab/Classroom Use Protocol ANNUAL/INTERIM REVIEW. (If this applies to a Transition protocol, the form will be called Transition Protocol ANNUAL/INTERIM REVIEW.)
 - The menu will close and the screen will display the protocol screen with an Outline of the sections and corresponding questions. The interim review will include the information you submitted with any previous submissions. It will also include a new section called *Annual Review Question*.



AN EXAMPLE PROTOCOL SCREEN FOR AN INTERIM REVIEW.

Icons You Will See

- The Required icon indicates that the question you are on must be completed in order to submit the form.
- ^{III} The **Attachment** icon indicates a question that you can upload an attachment.
- ^O The **Add** icon indicates an element that you can add additional information.
- The Add Image icon indicates that you can attach an image to the corresponding section.
- 6. Complete the questions in **Section 1: Annual Review Questions**.
 - If you submitted an annual review for this protocol for the previous year, this field will populate with the previous content. It is expected that you OVERWRITE the former content. (The content from the previous review is SAVED as another version of this protocol, so you will not be losing this content if deleted.)
 - If there were any changes that are considered an administrative change, edit any of the original sections that are affected. Administrative changes include:
 - Less than 15% change in animal numbers from original protocol, strain, or variety if there are no animal health issues
 - funding source
 - typographical
 - personnel other than PI
 - animal source
 - IACUC approved location
 - a. 1.1 Protocol Status: Confirm whether you wish to continue the study or permanently close it. If this is your third annual review, do not complete this form. Go to Protocols > Create <u>Renewal</u> Protocol in the top navigation bar to complete the renewal form instead.
 - b. **1.2 Problems/Adverse Effects:** Describe if there were any unanticipated problems or adverse events, morbidity or mortality, the cause(s) if known, and how these problems were resolved.
 - c. **1.3 Changes made to this protocol in the past year:** Explain whether there had been any changes made to the protocol within the past year.
 - d. **1.4 Permits or research conducted at another institution:** If this protocol involves permits or any research conducted at another institution, attach annual review approvals or updated permits to this section.
 - e. **1.5 Animals:** Confirm if you have enough animals for the research you are planning in the coming year.
- 7. You have completed the interim review application. Click the **Submit** button.
 - If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the
 button in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder	
1 Protocol Details	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

EXAMPLE OF THE OUTLINE WITH THREE OUTSTANDING REQUIRED QUESTIONS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED BEFORE SUBMITTING.

8. When all errors are resolved an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

Amendment

An **amendment** should be submitted if you need to make changes to an approved study. You can submit an amendment at any time during the lifetime of the study. If your study is nearing interim review, you can simultaneously submit any amending changes in that submission.

- 1. Go to the Topaz login page at https://animalprogram.colorado.edu
 - Bookmark this page for easy access later.
 - Login with your CU IdentiKey and password.
- 2. Open Animal Protocols.
- 3. Hover your cursor over Protocols. A menu will appear. Select Create Amendment Protocol.
 - The screen will refresh and display the Select Protocol For Amendment window with a list of your protocols that are eligible to amend.
 - Troubleshooting tip: If your protocol does not display, it is likely that a review or amendment has already been started. To check, click **Open Unsubmitted Protocols** from the Protocols menu.
- 4. Select the desired protocol and click the **Ok** button.
 - > The window will close and a *Select Form for Amendment* window will appear.
- 5. Select Lab/Classroom Use Protocol AMENDMENT. (If you are submitting an amendment for a Transition protocol, the form will be called Transition Protocol AMENDMENT.)
 - The menu will close and the screen will display the protocol screen with an Outline of the sections and corresponding questions. The amendment will include the information you submitted with your Original protocol. It will also include a new section called Amendment.



AN EXAMPLE PROTOCOL SCREEN FOR AN AMENDMENT.

Icons You Will See

- The **Required** icon indicates that the question you are on must be completed in order to submit the form.
- ^{III} The **Attachment** icon indicates a question that you can upload an attachment.
- [©] The **Add** icon indicates an element that you can add additional information.
- The Add Image icon indicates that you can attach an image to the corresponding section.
- 6. Complete the questions in **Section 1: Amendment**.
 - If you have submitted an amendment to this protocol in the past, this field will populate with the previous content. It is expected that you OVERWRITE the former content. (The content from the previous amendment is SAVED as another version of this protocol, so you will not be losing this content when deleted.)
 - > 1.1 List the proposed changes to this protocol
 - Briefly list each proposed change. Only enter one change per line (i.e. hard return after each listed item). Do not describe changes here. Edit any of the original sections if it will be affected by the addendum.
 - > 1.2 Clinical illness, pain, distress, or other health issues
 - Confirm whether or not you expect the animals to experience illness, pain distress or other health issues as a result of this addendum. If yes, you will need to modify *Section 6.5* of the *Study Objectives* to explain. If a new procedure, adds a new pain Category D or E you must conduct a new literature search for the new procedure. Report the databases used in literature search in
 - > 11.3 Other concerns
 - > 11.4 Potentially adverse events
- 7. Update the remaining protocol sections as needed.
- 8. You have completed the renewal application. Click the **Submit** button.
 - If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the
 button in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder	
1 Protocol Details	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

EXAMPLE OF THE OUTLINE WITH THREE OUTSTANDING REQUIRED QUESTIONS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED BEFORE SUBMITTING.

9. When all errors are resolved an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

Submit a Renewal (Every 3 Years)

A **renewal** protocol is submitted every three years following initial approval (i.e. year three of approval, year six of approval, year nine of approval, etc.). During renewal you can make amending changes to the original protocol, if desired.

NOTE: If the expiring protocol is a **Transition** protocol, i.e. created outside of Topaz and converted from a PDF, you must submit an <u>Original Protocol</u>. You cannot renew transition protocols because the converted form only contains basic identifying information.

- 1. Go to the Topaz login page at https://animalprogram.colorado.edu
 - Bookmark this page for easy access later.
 - Login with your CU IdentiKey and password.
- 2. Open Animal Protocols.
- 3. Hover your cursor over Protocols. A menu will appear. Select Create Renewal Protocol.
 - The screen will refresh and display the Select Protocol For Renewal window with a list of your protocols that are eligible to amend.
 - Troubleshooting tip: If your protocol does not display, it is likely that a review, renewal, or amendment has already been started. To check, click **Open Unsubmitted Protocols** from the Protocols menu. If so, you must delete or submit the form in progress before creating a new one.
- 4. Select the desired protocol and click the **Ok** button.
 - The window will close and a Select Form for Renewal window will appear. (The window will be empty if you try to renew a Transition protocol because you cannot renew a transition protocol. please submit an <u>Original Protocol</u>.)
- 5. Select Lab/Classroom Use Protocol RENEWAL.
 - The menu will close and the screen will display the protocol screen with an Outline of the sections and corresponding questions. It will also include a new section called *Renewal*.



AN EXAMPLE PROTOCOL SCREEN FOR A RENEWAL.

Icons You Will See

- The Required icon indicates that the question you are on must be completed in order to submit the form.
- ^{III} The **Attachment** icon indicates a question that you can upload an attachment.
- Generation The Add icon indicates an element that you can add additional information.
- The Add Image icon indicates that you can attach an image to the corresponding section.
- 6. Complete the questions in **Section 11: Renewal**.
 - If you have submitted an amendment to this protocol in the past, this field will populate with the previous content. It is expected that you OVERWRITE the former content. (The content from the previous amendment is SAVED as another version of this protocol, so you will not be losing this content when deleted.)
 - 11.1 Protocol Status Confirm whether you wish to continue the study or permanently close it. Your selection will determine which follow-up questions will be displayed.
 - *i. If permanently closing:* Confirm whether the animals on this protocol are alive and being housed. You should also describe any unanticipated problems or adverse events, morbidity or mortality, the cause(s) if known, and how these problems were resolved. Lastly, provide information on the progress made during the approval period.
 - *ii. If requesting renewal:* Describe any unanticipated problems or adverse events, morbidity or mortality, the cause(s) if known, and how these problems were resolved. Explain any changes that were made in the last year and provide information on the progress made during the approval period.
- 7. Update the remaining protocol sections as needed.
- 8. You have completed the renewal application. Click the **Submit** button.
 - If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the
 button in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder	
1 Protocol Details	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

EXAMPLE OF THE OUTLINE WITH THREE OUTSTANDING REQUIRED QUESTIONS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED BEFORE SUBMITTING.

9. When all errors are resolved an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

ELICIT PRE-REVIEW FEEDBACK VIA PDF (DO NOT USE "PRESUBMIT")

You will have noticed the Presubmit button in the toolbar. Use this to provide <u>view-only access</u> to others for the life of your protocol. Please note, <u>they will NOT be able to provide comments within</u> <u>Topaz</u>. They can only view. <u>To elicit feedback, print a Protocol Detail Report (PDF) and email it to</u> <u>exchange comments offline.</u>

Create Protocol Detail Report (PDF)

1) Click on Reports and select Protocol Detail Report. Do not select Presubmit.



2) Download the report to your local hard drive. (*The file will be in a PDF format. We recommend using Adobe's comment tool.*)



Remove Pre-Submission Reviewer (if added previously)

1) Click on Presubmit.



2) Click on the remove icon.

Presubmission Review	Add Presubmission Reviewers	0
DuHadway, Carina	carina.duhadway@colorado.	

ANIMAL ORDERS

You can submit an animal order in Topaz for any approved protocol. Animal orders can be scheduled for a single delivery or a standing order. The following tutorials explain how to create an order and schedule delivery.

How to Order Animals

- 1. Open a Silverlight-enabled browser.
 - PC users: Internet Explorer.
 - Mac users: Safari.
- 2. Go to the Topaz login page at https://animalprogram.colorado.edu
 - Bookmark this page for easy access later.
- 3. Login with your CU IdentiKey and password.
- 4. Under **Operations**, click on **Animal Orders**. The screen will refresh.
- 5. Hover your cursor over **Orders**. A menu will appear. Select **Create New Order**. The screen will refresh and a Select Form window will be displayed.
- 6. Select **Animal Ordering Form** (the most commonly used form) if ordering from a commercial vendor. If acquiring animals for another source such as another university, select the **Import Request Form**.
 - The menu will close and the screen will display the animal order screen with an Outline of the sections and corresponding questions.



9 AN EXAMPLE ANIMAL ORDER SCREEN.

- 7. Complete the questions in each section. Click on the **Next** button to advance to the next section.
 - Section 1: Protocol Information Under Protocol and Species click the icon to select a protocol. A new Select Protocol/Species window will open. Select the desired protocol from the list. The window will close. Click the Save icon. You must select a protocol and save for the remainder of the form to populate. Click the Next button.

1 Protocol Information
Request Id Request Id
97
Protocol and Species Begin this form by selecting the protocol and species then click the save button above. This will load the content into the page for your completion. Protocol (Species): Description:
Principal Investigator Principal Investigator

10 EXAMPLE OF THE ADD BUTTON ON THE PROTOCOL INFORMATION SECTION.

- Section 2: Order Information Under Vendor click the ^O icon. A Select Vendor window will open. Click on the appropriate vendor. The window will close. Click the Next button.
- Section 3: Delivery Information In this section you will set the schedule for the animal delivery.
 - i. In the top right corner of the Delivery Schedule section, click on the **Schedule Deliveries** button.

TOTAL DELIVERIES: 0 First Delivery: Placed: 0 Total Animals: 0 Last Delivery: Received: 0		hedule chedule			is button to ope es window.	n the Add	Chedule Deliv
			,				

11 THE SCHEDULE DELIVERY BUTTON IS LOCATED ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE. USE THIS BUTTON TO SCHEDULE A NEW DELIVERY.

ii. A new Add Deliveries window will open. To select a date, click on the date in the calendar. Dates marked with an "x" are blackout dates upon which deliveries cannot be scheduled. You can schedule deliveries for a single date or multiple dates. For guidance for setting multiple dates, see <u>Standing Order</u>. When you have made your date selection, click the **Ok** button.

וען	elive	ery Ca	alend	lar				Deliveries	
		Mar	ch, 2	2015		•	#	Expected Date	Remove
u	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	1	3/3/2015	9
2	23	24	25	26	27	28			
	2	3	4		6				
	9		11		13				
5		17		19					
_				26					
	30	31	1	20	30	4			
		Арі	ril, 2	015		•			
	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa			
)	30	31	1	2(3(4			
	6	7	8	9	10	11			
Ľ.	13	14	15	16	17	18			
)	20	21	22	23	24	25			
	27	28	29	30	X	2			
5		5	6	30	8	70/			

12 EXAMPLE ADD DELIVERIES WINDOW WITH A SINGLE DATE SELECTED.

iii. The window will close and the new delivery date will be added to the Delivery Schedule.

Deliv	ery So	hedule chedule						Schedule D	eliveries		
	TOTAL DELIVERIES: 1 First Delivery: 3/3/2015 Placed: 0 Total Animals: 0 Last Delivery: 3/3/2015 Received: 0										
	#	Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status			
~	1	3/3/2015	0	0	0	0	2-	2	•		

13 AN EXAMPLE THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE FOR A ONE-TIME DELIVERY.

iv. Click the C icon (to the left of the delivery date) to edit the delivery details. The question section of the screen will refresh. Complete the questions. After entering the Strain/Stock/Breed, click the Save icon to populate the number of animals available. Enter the amount of animals you want to order. When finished, click the Show Sections button. Click the Save icon.

Delivery Comments If you have any specia	Click this button to return Section 3: Delivery Information	animals, please enter below:
Show Sections	M	BACK Delivery 1 of 1 NEXT Delivery 1 of 1

14 AN EXAMPLE OF THE SHOW SECTIONS BUTTON THAT IS USED TO RETURN TO THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE.

• The Delivery Schedule will update to include the new delivery details.

		h . d. d.					Schedule [Deliverie
		chedule					Schedule L	Deliverie
SILVE	ery S	chedule						
141								
			1 Discode 0					
		VERIES: 1 First Delivery: 3/3/20						
		· · · ·						
	nima	als: 10 Last Delivery: 3/3/20	15 Received: 0	Fither	Totals	Actions	Status	
Total A		· · · ·		Either	Totals	Actions	Status	
	nima	als: 10 Last Delivery: 3/3/20	15 Received: 0	Either	Totals	Actions	Status	

15 AN EXAMPLE OF THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE FOR A COMPLETED ONE-TIME DELIVERY.

- The remaining section, Section 4: Office Use Only, will be completed by the OAR office.
 You do not need to enter any information into this section.
- You have completed the order. Click the Submit button. A Set Status window will open. Click the Set Status button. The form will be checked for errors. If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the subtract button in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder) 🖬
🗆 1 Protocol Details	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

16 EXAMPLE OF THE **O**UTLINE WITH THREE OUTSTANDING REQUIRED QUESTIONS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED BEFORE SUBMITTING.

9. When all errors are resolved, the Set Status window will close and an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

Recurring Orders

Delivery for a standing order is started the same way you would create a one-time delivery. The major difference begins when you are on the Schedule Deliveries window of Section 3: Delivery Information.

1. In the top right corner of the Delivery Schedule section, click on the Schedule Deliveries button.

📄 3 De	elive	ery Information						
Delivery Delivery						is button to ope ies window.	n the Add	Schedule Deliveries
TOTAL DE Total Anii			,					
#	ŧ	Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status

17 THE SCHEDULE DELIVERY BUTTON IS LOCATED ON THE RIGHT SIDE OF THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE. USE THIS BUTTON TO SCHEDULE THE DELIVERIES.

A new Add Deliveries window will open.

2. Click on the dates in the calendar on which you would like delivery. Dates marked with an "x" are blackout dates upon which deliveries cannot be scheduled. When you have made your date selections, click the **Ok** button.

eliver	1	y Ca	alend	lar				Deliveries		
		Mar	ch, 2	2015		•	#	Expected Date	Remove	
	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	1	3/4/2015	9	
	23 2	24 3	25 4	26 50	27	28 7	2	3/18/2015	9	
	9	10	11	12			3	4/1/2015	6	
	16	17	18	19	20	21			-	
	23	24	25	26	27	28				
	30	31	1	20	3(40				
		Арі	ril, 2	015		•				
Gu	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa				
9	30	31	1	20	3(4				
ĸ	6	7	8	9(10	11				
_	13	14	15	16	17	18				
9		21	22		24	25				
-		28	29	30	1(2				
6	4	5	6	70	8	9				

18 EXAMPLE ADD DELIVERIES WINDOW WITH MULTIPLE DATES SELECTED.

The window will close and the dates will be added to the Delivery Schedule.

elive	ery S	chedule						Schedule D	eliverie
	DELIN Anima			Placed: 0 Received: 0					
	#	Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status	
2	1	3/4/2015	0	0	0	0	2	2	0
		3/4/2015 15 3/18/2015 15		0 0	0 0	0 0	2 2	2 III 2 III	•

19 AN EXAMPLE THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE FOR A STANDING ORDER.

 Click the a icon to edit the first delivery details. The question section of the screen will refresh. Complete the questions and enter the amount of animals you want to order. When finished, click the Show Sections button. Click the Save icon.

Delivery Comments If you have any specia	Click this button to return Section 3: Delivery Information	
Show Sections	🖼 🦂 BACK 🔜 Delivery 1 of 1 NEXT 🕨 🍽	

20 AN EXAMPLE OF THE SHOW SECTIONS BUTTON THAT IS USED TO RETURN TO THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE.

4. The Delivery Schedule will update to include the delivery you modified. If the delivery information is similar, you can easily copy first delivery details to the other deliveries using the Actions menu. Click the ≥ icon. A menu will appear, select the Copy to ALL Other Deliveries to copy the information to all entries, or the Copy to Subsequent Deliveries to copy the information to all following the current delivery. If each delivery is different, use the codit each delivery. Click the Save icon when finished.

		hedule chedule						Schedule D	eliveries
	DELIV Animal		,	aced: 0 eceived: 0					
	#	Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status	
~	1	3/4/2015	5	5	0	10	2-	2	0
7	2	3/18/2015	0	0	0	0	😋 Сору	to ALL Other Deliv	veries
~	3	4/1/2015 15	0	0	0	0	- Copy	to Subsequent De	liveries

21 AN EXAMPLE OF THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE WITH MULTIPLE DELIVERY DATES AND THE MENU FOR THE ACTIONS COLUMN.

- 5. The remaining section, Section 4: Office Use Only, will be completed by the OAR office. You do not need to enter any information into this section.
- 6. You have completed the order. Click the Submit button. A Set Status window will open. Click the Set Status button. The form will be checked for errors. If any required items have not been completed, you will not be able to save. Use the subtrom in the Outline to address any problem areas.

Outline	
Q Quick Finder	
1 Protocol Details	
Reference Number	
Principal Investigator	

22 EXAMPLE OF THE OUTLINE WITH THREE OUTSTANDING REQUIRED QUESTIONS THAT NEED TO BE ADDRESSED BEFORE SUBMITTING.

7. When all errors are resolved, the Set Status window will close and an e-signature window will appear. Enter your CU IdentiKey and password, then click the **Save** button.

Animal Order Outline Filters

Use the Outline filters to easily view certain features in the form. When turned on the filter will appear in color. The number below each filter indicates the number of questions that are associated with that filter. In the example below there are three required questions. When turned on the filters will display its respective question type. You may apply multiple filters at the same time.

Outline	J∭7‡&Q
Q Quick Finder	
Outline	✐∭∽❤≈∞⊘

23 AN EXAMPLE OF THE ANIMAL ORDER OUTLINE FILTERS.

• Placed Deliveries



This filter displays deliveries that have been placed.

• Received Deliveries



This filter displays deliveries that have been received.

• Different Deliveries



This filter displays deliveries that are different from the others.

• Required Questions



This filter displays all questions that as marked as required.

• E-Signature Questions



This filter displays all questions that require an e-signature sign-off.

• Unanswered Questions



This filter displays all questions that were not answered by the author, PI, or other individual who submitted the protocol for review.

ORDER NEW CAGE CARDS FOR WEANINGS

Inform OAR staff of expected litters and request new cage cards. By completing this form, you are also reporting animal usage that will be deducted from your protocol.

1. Under **Operations**, click on **Animal Orders**.



2. Hover over *Orders*. In the menu that appears, select **Create New Order**.



3. Select Order Cards for Weanings.

Select Form		Q Quick Finder
Name	Description	Туре
Animal Ordering Form	OAR NON-USDA Animal Species Ordering Form	Animal Order
Import Request Form	OAR Import Request Form - Quarantine Program	Animal Order
Order Cards for Weaning	Cage Card request form for labs performing their own weans.	Animal Order

Complete Section 1: "Wean Protocol Information"

1. Click the 🚯 button to open the protocol selection tool. Then select the associated protocol.

1 Wean Protocol Information Request Id Protocol and Species	1 Wean Protocol Information								
Protocol and Species									
	Request Id								
Principal Investigator	Request Id								
Requester	477								
2 Wean Information									
Wean Schedule	Protocol and Species							Contraction of the local division of the loc	
	Principal Investigator	Select Protoco	l/Species	a	steed		Filter: Not Se	et	• 4
	Requester	Protocol #	Version #	-	Protocol Title	Species	Species Descr	Principal Inve	1
		2191-2191		1	Example Test	Rat #1		Steed, Garrett	
		2191-2191			Example Test	Mouse #1		Steed, Garrett	
		Test-2208-0424		2	Interm Review	Mouse #1		Steed, Garrett	
		2304TEST-0812		1	08122015 Test	Mouse #1		Steed, Garrett	
						and the second second second			
		2342-2342		1	Test 10132015	Rat #1		Steed, Garrett	
		2191-2191 2191-2191	Version #	1	Example Test Example Test	Rat #1 Mouse #1		Species Descr	Steed, Garrett Steed, Garrett

2. Click Save.



Complete Section 2: "Wean Information"

1. Click Wean Information to open the next section of the form.



2. Click Schedule Deliveries.

Z Wea	an Info	rmation						
Wean Scho	edule							Schedule Deliverie
Enter exp	ected v	wean date						
TOTAL DELI	VERIES:	0 First Delivery: Placed:	0					
Total Anima	als:	0 Last Delivery: Received	E 0					
		Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status

3. Set the date the litter will be weaned and placed in new cages.

	Add (Deliv	/erie	S							
	17_[Deliv	ery C	aleno	lar				Ģ	Deliveries	
	4	9	Septe	mbe	r 20	16	•	#		Expected Date	Remove
Select the wear			Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa	1		9/13/2016	
late; i.e. the dat		•	30	31	1	2	3			- / /	ā
cage will be or			6	7	8	9	10	2	·	9/28/2016	
weaned. (If mult			13	14	15	16	17				
itters are assoc			20	_			24				If necessary
with this proto nulitple dates ca				28	29	30	1				If necessary, remove dates
selected.)			4	5	6	7	8				clicking here
concorrent.)	_										choking hore
	•		Octo	ber	2016	5	•				
	Su	Мо	Tu	We	Th	Fr	Sa				
	25	26	27	28	29	30	1				
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8				
	9	10		12		_					
	16		18				22				
	23		25			28	29				
	30	31	1	2	3	4	5				-
_											🖉 Cancel
			۲w								

4. Open the *Delivery* subform by clicking on the arrow next to each delivery date

Wean Schedule							Sche	dule Deliver
Enter expected v	vean date							
	2 First Delivery: 8/15/20 0 Last Delivery: 8/26/20							
	Delivery Date	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status	
~	8/15/2016	5 0	0	0	0	2.	2	•
C 2	8/26/2016	5 0			0	2-	2	0

5. Complete the delivery subform. (See instructions on following page.)

Delivery 1 - 9/13/2016		YYY> 15								1-1
Emergency Contact			l.							
Emergency Contact Please enter emergency of	ontact first a	and last na	ne							
Emergency Phone										
Please enter the after hou	urs/cell phon	e of the em	ergency cor	itact abov	/e.					
Per Diem Account				If yo	our S/	S/B is I	not liste	ed,		3
Per Diem Account			_				the str			•
🕲 DuHadway, Carina - 13	002981			Circk	nere	to uuu				
Strain/Stock/Breed										
If your S/S/B is not listed	here please	submit the	request to	add the s	train to y	our protod	here			-
0							\sim			
Birth Date Birth Date +/- 3 days										
<m d="" yyyy=""></m>	Enter ti	he date ti	ne							
KN/0/99992 [15]	litter v	was born								
Animals per Pain Catego	nu.									
Current Totals (ALL Orders		· 1 Adjust								
Requested: 0 On Order:				ailable: 59						
Pain Category # Ma			Either	vailable: 59 Requ	On	Recei	Adjust	Authori	Available	Percen
						Recei	Adjust 0	Authori	Available	Percen
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location	les # Fe	emales # 0 🛟	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					
Pain Category # Ma USDA C	les # Fe	emales # 0 🛟	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please	les # Fe	emales # 0 🛟	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please : Cage Type Choose one from the dre	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please a Cage Type Choose one from the dr	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please a Cage Type Choose one from the dr Number Per Cage Number of animals per s	les # Fe	emales 4	Either 0 🔹	Requ	On					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please Animal location, please Cage Type Choose one from the drain Choose one from the drain Males: Number Per Cage Number of animals per compared Males: 0 Females: 0	les # Fe	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please a Cage Type Choose one from the dra Choose one from the dra Number Per Cage Number of animals per of Males: 0 Females: 0 Cage Card Comments	les # Fe	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please a Cage Type Choose one from the dra Choose one from the dra Number Per Cage Number of animals per of Males: 0 Females: 0 Cage Card Comments	les # Fe 0 0 1 select the real op down mer cage ation you wo	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0					0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please and Cage Type Choose one from the dr Choose one from the dr Number Per Cage Number of animals per of Males: 0 Females: 0 Cage Card Comments Please enter any inform	les # Fe 0 0 1 select the real op down mer cage ation you wo taff	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0	1	0			0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please a Cage Type Choose one from the dra Choose one from the dra Number Per Cage Number of animals per of Males: 0 Females: 0 Cage Card Comments Please enter any inform	les # Fe 0 0 1 select the real op down mer cage ation you wo taff	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0	1	0			0.17
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please Generation Cage Type Choose one from the drain Choose one from the drain Generation Number Per Cage Number of animals per of ani	les # Fe 0 0 1 select the real op down mer cage ation you wo taff	emales #	Either	Requ 0	On 0	1	0			
Pain Category # Ma USDA C Housing Location Animal location, please Cage Type Choose one from the drain Choose one from the drain Number Per Cage Number of animals per of	les # Fe 0 0 1 select the real op down mer cage ation you wo taff instructions f	emales # 0 • 0 quested roo nu ould need to for the staff	Either 0 C om location appear on f regarding t nent by lab	Requ 0 the cage of his wean, personnel	On 0 card please e	enter it belo	ow.	600	599	0.17 8

6. Click Save.



Schedule Multiple Deliveries

- 1. Go to *Wean Schedule*.
- 2. If you would like to copy details from the subform you just completed (e.g. contact info, per diem account), open the *Actions* dropdown and selecting **Copy to ALL or Subsequent Deliveries**.
- 3. Open the subsequent delivery forms and <u>make changes specific to that weaning request</u> animal numbers, strain, birthdate, etc.

1 Wean Protocol Information		<mark>2</mark> W	'ean Informati	ion						•
Request Id	_	_						6		
Protocol and Species	Wea	an Se	chedule						Schedule Deliveries	
Principal Investigator	Ente	er ex	pected wean	date						
Requester	TOT	AL DI	ELIVERIES: 2	First Delivery:	8/15/2016	Placed: 0				
🖃 2 Wean Information	Tota	I Ani	mals: 0	Last Delivery:	8/26/2016	Received: 0				
🖃 Wean Schedule		#	Delivery	Males	Females	Either	Totals	Actions	Status	
Delivery 1 - 8/15/2016										
Emergency Contact	C	1	8/15/20: 15	0	0	0	0			
Emergency Phone	C	2	8/26/20: 15	0	0	0	0	😋 Сору	to ALL Other Deliveries	
Per Diem Account				1	1		-	👢 Сору	to Subsequent Deliverie	es
Strain/Stock/Breed								• 		

4. Click Submit.



5. In the pop-up window, click **Set Status**.



- 6. Complete e-signature form by entering your login credentials and clicking Save.
 - a. Make note of the *Item Name* (aka the Request ID) for your records.

E-Signature Informatio	n
User Name	carina
Password	••••••
Current User	DuHadway, Carina
Current Date/Time	9/28/2016 4:55:49 PM
Item Name	487
E-Signature Event	Animal Order Request Submitted
Description	
	Save O Cancel